
rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 1 

 
 

 1 
Republic of the Philippines 2 

Department of Education 3 
 4 

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICE 5 
OD  633.7232    PPMD  636.6543   CMD  635.3762 6 

 7 
Rm. M-511, 5th Floor, Mabini Bldg., DepEd Central Office Complex, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City, Philippines 8 

Telefax:   633-93-43    633-65-43 / email: depedcentral.bacsecretariat@deped.gov.ph 9 
PROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICPROCUREMENT SERVICPROCUREMENT SERVICPROCUREMENT SERVICE PROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT SERVICPROCUREMENT SERVICEPROCUREMENT  10 

   Document Template No. BACSD-2019- 11 
(revised 040519; prepared by conicolas) 12 
 13 

Bids and Awards Committee I 14 
 15 
 16 

Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference 17 
 18 

Project  : Procurement for the Design and Construction of 19 
Kindergarten, Elementary and Secondary School Buildings 20 
and Technical Vocational Laboratories in the Last Mile 21 
Schools CY 2021 22 

 23 

ABC   :  PhP 1,485,000,000.00 24 

End-User     : AS- Educational Facilities Division 25 

 26 

Date & Time :  September 3, 2021; 10:00 A.M. 27 

Venue  :  Videoconferencing using the Microsoft Teams (MS 28 

Teams) 29 
  30 
 31 
Present: 32 
 33 
Bids and Awards Committee (BAC) I: Usec. Alain Del B. Pascua, Chairperson; Dir. 34 
Samuel R. Soliven, Regular Member; and Dir. Lope B. Santos III and Ar. Felix F. 35 
Villanueva, Jr., Provisional Members 36 
 37 
Procurement Management Service: Mr. James Ronald G. Ybiernas, Supervising 38 
Administrative Officer; Ms. Christa O. Nicolas, Senior Technical Assistant II; Ms. 39 
Ruby Anna G. Balaoro, Technical Assistant II; Mr. Homer A. Silva, Administrative 40 
Support II and Ms. Patricia P. Muñoz, Administrative Support I (BAC Secretariat 41 
Division) 42 
  43 
Office of the Asst. Sec. for Procurement and Administration Representative(s): Atty. 44 
Salvador C. Malana III, Assistant Secretary; Ms. Angelina C. Bautista; Ms. Criselyn 45 
C. Saquing and Ms. Genalyn De Asis 46 
 47 
Technical Working Group: Engr. Luis G. Purisima Jr.; Engr. Nehru Reinier 48 
Sarmiento; Engr. Raymund Alcazar; Engr. Levy Tatad; Ar. Jet Raymond G. Alabaso; 49 
Engr. Crisan P. Coronel and Engr. Aldrin C. Tagao 50 
 51 
End-User Representative(s): Engr. Annabelle R. Pangan Chief, AS-EFD  52 

 53 

Observer(s): Mr. Leo Bautista 54 

 55 
Prospective Bidder(s): (1) Johfel C. Valmocina & Jerie Maidylene Diaz (Prismodial 56 
Construction Corp); (2) Madel M. Carino & Jenny Rose Ebuen (Bancal Construction 57 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 2 

 
 

and Supply); (3) Johniel Balindong & Michelle D.Oza (Brima Construction and 58 
Enterprises); (4) Maria Deseree G. Valino & Liezyl D. Braza (BF Corporation); (5) 59 
Jhel Malbas & Marvin P. Dadovo (A.C. Tumang Construction Corp.); (6) Donna Mae 60 
C. Del Rosario & Jake D. Nidea (Hyper J Construction and Supply); (7) Raymond B. 61 
Fabale & Maria Fe Adolfo (R. Fable Construction Corp.); (8) Joelibert G. Gargar 62 
(FFJJ Construction); (9) Ana Marie H. King & Airah Fae F. Pastorfide (St. Gerrard 63 
Construction General Contractor and Development Corp.); (10) Kit R. Daleon & 64 
Angelyn C. Antonio (FAHST Innotech); (11) Ezra Yeal H. Larita & Gil Maldas 65 
(Ronmark Construction); (12) Eduardo U. Jingco (EU Jingco Construction Corp.) 66 
 67 
I. CALL TO ORDER 68 

 69 
The BAC I Chairperson, Usec. Alain Del B. Pascua, presided and called the 70 
pre-bid conference to order at 10:00 A.M. The BAC Secretariat documented 71 
the minutes of meeting. 72 
 73 
 74 

II. CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 75 
 76 

The BAC I Chairperson certified that the quorum of the BAC was present to 77 
transact business. He acknowledged the presence of the BAC members, BAC 78 
Secretariat, Technical Working Group, end-user representative, observer and 79 
prospective bidders. 80 
 81 

III. HIGHLIGHTS OF DISCUSSION 82 
 83 

The BAC I Chairperson welcomed everyone to the pre-bid conference. 84 
 85 
The BAC I Chairperson asked Ms. Christa Nicolas, BAC Secretariat, to 86 
facilitate the roll of attendance. Moreover, the BAC I Chairperson 87 
announced that the floor was open to queries, information, proposals or 88 
other concerns coming from the prospective bidders or suppliers on the 89 
assumption that the prospective bidders have downloaded bidding 90 
documents from the PhilGEPS, requested from the BAC Secretariat for 91 
copies of the same, or bought copies of the same.  92 

 93 
Ms. Nicolas proceeded with the presentation of the project information 94 

such as the approved budget of the contract, end-user of the project, cost 95 

of bidding documents, observers invited and focused on the salient 96 

features of the Bidding Documents such as the bid data sheet, special 97 

conditions of contract, schedule of requirements, technical specifications, 98 

lumpsum bid price form and checklist of requirements. 99 

 100 
After the presentation, the BAC I Chairperson opened the floor for 101 

queries/clarifications, as follows: 102 

 103 
 104 

Instructions to Bidders / Bid Data Sheet 

Provisio
n 

Questions/Queries/Clarification
s 

BAC’s Response For Bid 
Bulletin 
(Y/N) 

ITB 
Clause 
5.4 (3) 

Madel M. Carino & Jenny Rose 
Ebuen (Bancal Construction 
and Supply) 

Asec. Malana 
responded that 
based on the bid 

Y, if 
considered 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 3 

 
 

➢ She asked if the SLCC of 
10 years and above be 
accepted/considered.  

 

data sheet of the 
bidding 
documents, the 
requirement is 
“that the bidder 
must have 
successfully 
undertaken and 
completed at least 
one design and 
construction 
project/contract, 
costing at least 
50% of the ABC of 

this project within 
the past 5 years”.  
It will now depend 
on the end-user as 
well as the BAC if 
it will widen the 
limitation, for 
example to 10 
years. 
 
The BAC I 
Chairperson stated 
that the BAC will 
take note of the 
suggestion/request
. 

ITB 
Clause 
5.4 (3) 

Jhel Malbas (A.C. Tumang 
Construction Corp.) 

➢ Per SLCC requirement, 
she clarified that in case 
the contract only 
construction is 
indicated, can they 
provide attachments 
indicating therein that 

design was also 
provided. She further 
asked if this will be 
considered as SLCC as 
required in the biding 
documents. 

Asec. Malana 
answered that in 
the bidding 
documents, the 
requirement is 
conjunctive, thus, 
should be Detailed 
Architectural 
Engineering 

Designs (DAED 
AND Building 
Construction.  
 
The Chairperson 
responded that 
those details are 
usually indicated 
in the contracts. 

N 

ITB 
Clause 
5.4 (4) 

Madel M. Carino & Jenny Rose 
Ebuen (Bancal Construction 
and Supply) 

➢ With regard to the 
personnel requirement, 
she asked in case they 
bid for one lot, is it 
possible to use the same 

The BAC I 
Chairperson asked 
the end-user to 
respond to the 
query. Engr. 
Annabelle Pangan 
answered in the 
affirmative, one 

Y, if 
considered
. 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 4 

 
 

design team for two lots. 
➢ Moreover, she asked if it 

will be included in the 
technical proposal 
during bid opening like 
for example, the 
construction field team 
that is required for every 
cluster or per site or this 
will be submitted during 
contract award. 

design team for all 
the lots will do. 
 
As requested by 
Asec. Malana, the 
BAC Secretariat 
shared the 
pertinent provision 
of the Bid Data 
Sheet 5.4 on page 
22 to clarify the 
concern of the 
bidder. As stated 
therein, there 

should be one 
design team for 
every lot, there 
should be one (1) 
construction field 
team for every 
identified school 
site. On pages 20-
22, it was 
indicated that the 
requirements 
stated in ITV 
Clause 5.4 are to 
be submitted 
during the bid 
opening as an 
addition to the 
requirements 
prescribed under 
Section 23.4.2 of 
the Revised IRR of 
RA 9184. 
 
Engr. Luis 
Purisima, Jr., 

TWG, answered 
that as stated in 
the same 
provision, project 
requirements, 
which shall include 
the following: 
1. Organizational 
chart which states 
both the Design 
and Construction 
may initially 
indicate only the 
project Engineer. 
2. List of 
construction 
personnel which 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 5 

 
 

refer to the 
construction area. 
Just indicate the 
project manager, 
project engineer, 
structural engineer 
and secretary 
engineer which are 
the key personnel. 
 

ITB 
Clause 
5.4 (4) 

Johniel Balindong & Michelle 
D.Oza (Brima Construction and 
Enterprises) 

➢ She stated that since key 

personnel was already 
discussed, she asked if 
they can put in the list 
of key personnel & 
laborers the statement 
“to be hired upon 
award”. 
 

➢ She also asked if non-
key personnel be 
included in the 
organizational chart. 

 

The BAC I 
Chairperson 
reiterated that only 
the key personnel 

shall be submitted 
during the bid 
opening. For the 
non-key personnel, 
most probably, the 
personnel will be 
indicated in the 
organizational 
chart without 
necessarily 
indicating the 
names like for 
example the 
laborers. 
 
Engr. Purisima 
added that 
curriculum vitae is 
required for the 
key personnel. 

 

ITB 
Clause 
5.4 (4) 

FFJJ Construction 
representative 
 

➢ Regarding key personnel 
requirement, she asked 

if it is per cluster, per 
region or per site. 

 
➢ Regarding the 

architectural design to 
be submitted, while 
reviewing the bidding 
documents, there are 
schools that are for 
elementary and high 
school, she asked if they 
need to separate designs 
for elementary and 
secondary. 

 
➢ For the technical 

drawing, she asked if it 

Engr. Purisima 
stated that for the 
key personnel, the 
requirement is on 
per cluster basis. 

The BAC I 
Chairperson stated 
that the 
requirements are 
stated in the 
bidding 
documents.  
 
Engr. Purisima 
concurred with the 
clarification of the 
prospective bidder 
that in case the 
bidder bids for 
North Luzon, then 
four engineers 
such as structural, 

N 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 6 

 
 

pertains to architectural 
design or do they need to 
include the structural, 
electrical and plumbing. 
 

sanitary and so on, 
are required. He 
added that the 
stated requirement 
was formed in case 
of simultaneous 
implementation, 
thus, different 
personnel are 
needed. 
 
Engr. Purisima 
responded that one 
of the annexes in 

the bidding 
documents, the 
designs and 
drawings were 
presented, as 
reference of school 
building. The 
school building 
designs are 
intended for 
elementary and 
secondary. So only 
one design is being 
used. 
 
Engr. Purisima 
responded that 
only the 
preliminary 
conceptual design 
will be submitted 
during  
bid opening. The 
structural design 
will be during the 

contract 
implementation. 

 Johfel C. Valmocina & Jerie 
Maidylene Diaz (Prismodial 
Construction Corp.) 
 
➢ She asked if is it okay if 

one of the joint venture 
partners has no ongoing 
project and only the lead 
contractor will present. 

Asec. Malana 
answered in the 
affirmative. 

N 

ITB 
Clause 
10.6 (ii) 

Maria Deseree G. Valino ( BF 
Corporation) 

➢ With respect to the 
Affidavit of Inspection, 
she asked if this will be 
coming from DepEd on a 

Engr. Pangan 
stated that the 
affidavit of site 
inspection as a 
requirement for 
procurement must 

Y, if 
considered
. 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 7 

 
 

templated format and 
who will be the 
signatory. 

➢ As a follow-up, she 
stated that since this is 
a requirement per 
school, she asked on 
how are they going to 
secure these documents 
and whether they have 
to conduct school visit. 

signed by school 
head. She stated 
that they will 
provide template 
through bid 
bulletin. 
 
The BAC I 
Chairperson 
answered that they 
will go to the 
school and do the 
site inspection. He 
stated that this 

requirement was 
added because of 
the previous 
projects of Last 
Mile Schools and 
PPP, the bidder/s 
only assumed or 
stated that they 
conducted a site 
inspection. Lack of 
site inspection 
caused a variation 
as to the bid and 
as to the actual 
cost. This will also 
serve as due 
diligence on the 
part of the bidder 
that they 
conducted on-site 
inspection to 
determine the cost 
of the project. 

ITB 
Clause 

10.6 (ii) 

Johfel C. Valmocina & Jerie 
Maidylene Diaz (Prismodial 

Construction Corp.) 
➢ Regarding site 

inspection, since 
inspection will be done, 
she asked if they need to 
bring a certificate duly 
signed or the affidavit 
will suffice. 
 

➢ He asked if they need 
certificates for the 
materials like for the 
walls, before or after the 
bidding. 

The BAC I 
Chairperson 

answered that as 
discussed earlier, 
the end-user will 
provide the 
template. 
 
Engr. Purisima 
answered that if 
the bidder will 
utilize or introduce 
new materials, it 
should be 
accredited by 
DPWH or Bureau 
of Research and 
Standards. 

N 

 105 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 8 

 
 

Special Conditions of Contract 

Provision Questions/Queries/Clarifications BAC’s Response For Bid 
Bulletin 
(Y/N) 

GCC 
Clause 2 

Maria Deseree G. Valino (BF 
Corporation) 
➢ Regarding the Completion of 

work stating that: 
construction- 90 days from 
issuance of notice to 
commence work but in any 
case, completion should not 
be later than December 10, 
2021, she asked if this is 

still the construction 
duration requirement that 
they will follow. 
 

The BAC I 
Chairperson 
asked the end-
user to further 
explain the 
contract 
duration period 
as stated in the 
bidding 
documents in 

relation to the 
issued 
resolution on 
the validity of 
funds. 
 
Engr. Pangan 
suggested that 
the contract 
duration as 
stated may be 
revised following 
the recently 
issued 
resolution on 
the validity of 
funds. 
 
The BAC I 
Chairperson 
concurred and 
stated that 
revisions may 
be made. He 
added that the 

governing 
factors are the 
actual process 
of the duration 
of the building 
and 
construction 
and the life 
expectancy of 
the funds. 

Y, if 
considered. 

GCC 
Clause 4 

Maria Deseree G. Valino (BF 
Corporation) 
➢ With regard to the 

necessary permits, she 
asked if there is an special 
arrangement between the 
DepEd or LGU or Inter-

The BAC 
Chairperson 
stated that at 
the moment, no 
special 
arrangements or 
consideration in 

N 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 9 

 
 

agency. terms of 
securing 
permits. LGUs, 
usually give 
consideration to 
government 
projects to be 
procured. The 
normal process 
with the LGU 
will be followed. 

GCC 
Clause 6 

Maria Deseree G. Valino (BF 
Corporation) 
➢ She asked if they can 

secure a site appraisal 
report, site investigation 
report or site assessment 
report. 

The BAC I 
Chairperson 
clarified with 

the end-user if 
these were 
included in the 
site inspection 
or if these are 
different. 
Engr. Pangan 
answered that 
the contractor 
itself must 
conduct their 
own assessment 
during the site 
inspection. This 
is to ensure that 
the contractors 
conducted due 
diligence. 

N 

ITB 
Clause 16 

Representative from FFJJ 
Construction 
➢ With regard to the project 

title, if they are to bid for 
multiple lots, she asked if 
they will indicate the lot/s. 

The BAC 
Secretariat 
answered that 
the bidder must 
indicate the 
lot/s bidding for 
in the outer 

envelope as well 
as in the 
documents. 

N 

 106 
 107 
 108 

Annexes 

Provision Questions/Queries/Clarification
s 

BAC’s 
Response 

For Bid 
Bulletin 
(Y/N) 

Checklist of 
Requirement
s 

Maria Deseree G. Valino (BF 
Corporation) 
➢ Considering the checklist of 

requirements of the 
technical and financial 
documents including the 
affidavit of site inspection, 

The BAC I 
Chairperson 
responded 
that the BAC 
will take note 
of the 
suggestion 

Y, if 
considered
. 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 10 

 
 

she asked if the BAC may 
consider the extension of 
submission of bids by 
October 15, 2021. 

and will 
review the 
dates 
considering 
the new 
development
s as to the 
life 
expectancy of 
the funds. 

 109 
Other Matters 

Provision Questions/Queries/Clarifications BAC’s Response For Bid 
Bulletin 
(Y/N) 

 Johfel C. Valmocina & Jerie 
Maidylene Diaz ( Prismodial 
Construction Corp) 
➢ She asked that in case of 

descrepancy between bid 
data sheet and SCC, what 
will govern. 

➢ In respect to the increase in 
the materials, she asked as 
to the basis of costing of the 
school furniture since this 
project was allocated in 
2019. 

Asec. Malana 
answered that in 
case of 
discrepancy, it will 
be check which is 
binding, subject to 
verification during 
post-qualification, 
The TWG will 
evaluate. 
 
Engr. Pangan 
answered that the 
costing was 
already based on 
the first quarter of 
2021 of the 
construction 
material and price 
canvass. 

N 

 110 
 111 

The BAC I Chairperson announced that having exhausted most of the 112 
bidders’ queries and issues, the prospective bidders may write a 113 
clarification which may be sent via the BAC Secretariat e-mail address on 114 
or before September 6, 2021, 12:00 NN. Furthermore, the BAC I 115 
Chairperson stated that the clarification/questions that have been raised 116 
are all noted and will be taken up by the BAC, Technical Working Group 117 
and end-user, and should there be changes or ammendments in the 118 
bidding documents, the BAC will issue a Bid Bulletin, otherwise, the 119 
existing provisions or matters under the current bidding documents will 120 
remain as is.  121 

 122 
Having no other matters to discuss, the pre-bid conference was 123 
adjourned at 12:27 P.M. 124 
 125 
 126 
 127 
 128 

 129 



rabalaoro / Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference / *Last Mile School* Page 11 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: 130 
131 
132 

Ruby Anna G. Balaoro Christa O. Nicolas 133 
Technical Assistant I Senior Technical Assistant II 134 
BAC Secretariat Division BAC Secretariat Division 135 

136 
137 

Minutes of Pre-Bid Conference 138 
139 

Project  : Procurement for the Design and Construction of 140 
Kindergarten, Elementary and Secondary School Buildings 141 
and Technical Vocational Laboratories in the Last Mile 142 
Schools CY 2021 143 

144 

ABC  : PhP 1,485,000,000.00 145 

End-User     : AS- Educational Facilities Division 146 

147 

Date & Time : September 3, 2021; 10:00 A.M. 148 

Venue  : Videoconferencing using the Microsoft Teams (MS 149 

Teams) 150 
151 
152 
153 
154 
155 

Concurred by: 156 
BIDS AND AWARDS COMMITTEE I 157 

158 
159 

ALAIN DEL B. PASCUA 160 
Undersecretary and Chairperson 161 

162 
163 

 SAMUEL R. SOLIVEN 164 
Director III and Regular Member 165 

166 
167 

Dir. LOPE B. SANTOS III 168 
Provisional Member 169 

170 
171 

Ar. FELIX F. VILLANUEVA, JR. 172 
Provisional Member 173 

174 



Angelina C. Bautista, STA III

Stamp






